
	
	

	
 
 
 
 
 
February 3, 2017  
 
Hamister Group, LLC 
10 Lafayette Square, Suite 1900 
Buffalo, NY 14203 
Attn: Mr. Matt Roland, AICP 
 
RE:  Proposed Westwood Development, Town of Amherst, NY 
  Summary of NYSDOT Safety Study and PIL Investigation 

 
Dear Mr. Roland, 

The purpose of this letter is to provide a summary of the results of two studies recently 
completed by the New York State Department of Transportation Engineers (NYSDOT). The 
following studies have been reviewed by our office: 1) 20% PIL Investigation on North Forest 
Road between Wiltshire Road and Sheridan Drive dated August 18, 2016; and 2) Safety Study 
on Sheridan Drive between Harlem Road and North Forest Road dated November 4, 2016. 
 
1) 20% PIL Investigation on North Forest Road between Wiltshire Road and Sheridan Drive 

dated August 18, 2016 
 
 A PIL is a Priority Investigation Location. 
 This study investigated crashes that occurred on North Forest Road in the roadway 

segment between Wiltshire Road and Sheridan Drive. 
 It also included review of crash data at the three intersections of North Forest Road 

with Wiltshire Road, Tee Court and Sheridan Drive. 
 The study included all crashes that occurred between November 1, 2012 and October 

31, 2015 – a duration of three years total. 
 68 crashes occurred within the study limits over the three-year period. 
 65 of the 68 crashes in the study limits occurred at the intersection of North Forest 

Road and Sheridan Drive. 
 There were no crashes at either Wiltshire Road or Tee Court. 
 Crash rates are calculated for segments and intersections. The crash rate for the study 

segment was 25.27 ACC/MVM (ACC/MVM = accidents per million vehicle miles); 
while the average rate for this type of facility statewide is 4.23 ACC/MVM. Thus the 
crash rate for this segment is approximately 5 to 6 times greater than the statewide 
average. 

 The intersection crash rate is 1.29 Acc/MEV (accidents per million entering vehicles, 
i.e. vehicles entering the intersection). The statewide average rate for similar 
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intersections is 0.50 Acc/MEV. Thus the actual crash rate is approximately 2.5 times 
greater than the statewide average rate for similar intersections. 

 The investigation evaluated types of crashes and their causes, with rear end accidents 
being the most common accident type. 

 There were no fatal crashes and the number of injury crashes fell within the expected 
range for these types of intersections. 

 No deficiencies were identified at the North Forest Road/Sheridan Drive intersection. 
 NYSDOT is formulating a signal coordination plan for all of the signals along Sheridan 

Drive. 
 No other recommendations were made in this study. 

 
2) Safety Study on Sheridan Drive between Harlem Road and North Forest Road dated 

November 4, 2016 
 The study includes the segment of Sheridan Drive between Harlem Road and a point 

west of North Forest Road. 
 Seven intersections along Sheridan Drive were included in the study: Harlem Rd, I-

290 ramps, I-290 on-ramp, Sunrise Blvd, Cranburne Lane, Frankhauser Rd, and 
Fenwick Dr. 

 Three years of crash data were reviewed for the time period from November 1, 2012 
through October 31, 2015. 

 105 crashes occurred in the study segment during this time period and were evaluated 
as part of this study. 

 14 crashes occurred in the segment west of Harlem Rd; mostly overtaking crashes. 
 48 crashes occurred between Harlem Rd and the I-290 ramps. Over 50% were left-

turn crashes; 16% were rear-end crashes. 
 44 crashes occurred between the I-290 ramps and the end of the study area east of 

Fenwick Drive. 55% of these crashes were rear-ends and 25% were related to left 
turns. 

 82 of the 105 crashes occurred at the intersections: 27 at Harlem Road (12 rear-end, 
4 left-turn), 35 at the I-290 ramps (23 left-turn, 9 rear-end), 3 at Sunrise Blvd (2 rear-
end, 1 left-turn), 1 at Cranburne Lane (left-turn), 9 at Frankhauser Rd (5 rear-end, 2 
left-turn), and 3 at Fenwick Drive (2 left-turn, 1 rear-end). 

 There were no fatal crashes and the number of injury crashes fell within the expected 
range for these types of intersections. 

 Crash rates were calculated for the three “zones/segments” of Sheridan Drive. The 
calculated crash rates were then compared to statewide averages for similar facilities. 
The segment west of Harlem Rd was above the statewide average, Harlem Rd to the 
I-290 ramps was significantly above the statewide average and between the I-290 
ramps and east of Fenwick Drive was below the statewide average. 

 Similarly, crash rates were calculated and compared to statewide averages at the 
intersections. The intersections of Harlem Rd and the I-290 ramps were above the 
statewide average rates while the intersections of Sunrise Blvd, Frankhauser Rd, and 
Fenwick Dr were all below the statewide average. 
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 The study recommends the following: 
a. The eastbound left turn signal for Sheridan Drive at the I-290 WB on-ramp be 

converted to protected only phasing (i.e. a green arrow) during non-peak 
hours only. 

b. Replace the I-290 bridge over Sheridan Drive with a clear-span bridge to 
improve sight distance when the bridge needs to be replaced. 

c. Synchronize the signals along Sheridan Drive, especially during peak hours. 
d. Enforce proper use of two-way left-turn lanes on Sheridan Drive. 
e. Install missing signs in various locations as needed. 
 

If you have any questions or are in need of additional information, please do not hesitate to 
contact our office. 
  
Very truly yours, 
SRF & Associates 

 
 
Amy C. Dake, P.E., PTOE 
Senior Transportation Engineer 
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